Public Document Pack
City of

¥ BRADFORD

S D METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL

Agenda for a meeting of the Chlldren s Services
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on
Wednesday, 18 October 2023 at 4.30 pm in Committee
Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford

Members of the Committee — Councillors

LABOUR CONSERVATIVE LIBERAL BRADFORD
DEMOCRAT INDEPENDENT
GROUP
Fricker Davies Sunderland Sajawal
Mohammed Pollard
Regan
Thirkill
Zaman
Alternates:
LABOUR CONSERVATIVE LIBERAL BRADFORD
DEMOCRAT INDEPENDENT
GROUP
Alipoor Birch Naylor Elahi
Berry Felstead
Humphreys
| Hussain
Walsh

VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS:

Church representative:
Joyce Simpson

Parent Governor Representatives:
Fauzia Raza
Parent Governor Representatives:
Shifa Simab

NON-VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS:

Teacher Secondary School
Representative: Tom Bright

Children’s Social Care:
Dr Samina Karim



Notes:

This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by
contacting the Agenda contact shown below.

The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if
Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer
named at the foot of that agenda item.

From:

Asif Ibrahim

Director of Legal and Governance

Agenda Contact: Kav Amrez / Louis Kingdom

Phone: 07929 070288/07890 416570

E-Mail: kanwal.Amrez2@bradford.gov.uk/louis.kingdom@bradford.gov.uk



A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)

The Director of Legal and Governance will report the names of
alternate Members who are attending the meeting in place of
appointed Members.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct — Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1)

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary

Interests

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR
Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR
Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

You must:

Disclose the interest; not participate in
the discussion or vote; and leave the
meeting unless you have a dispensatior

Disclose the interest; speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak but otherwise not participate in th
discussion or vote; and leave the
meeting unless you have a dispensatior

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless the
matter affects the financial interest or
well-being

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interests of a majority of
inhabitants of the affected ward, and

(b) a reasonable member of the publi
knowing all the facts would believe th.



it would affect your view of the wider
public interest;in which case speak or
the item only if the public are also
allowed to speak but otherwise not dc
not participate in the discussion or
vote; and leave the meeting unless
you have a dispensation.

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned
or their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

MINUTES
Recommended —

That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2023 be signed as
a correct record.

(Kav Amrez / Louis Kingdom — 07929 070228 / 07890 416570)
INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules — Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.

(Kav Amrez / Louis Kingdom — 07929 070228 / 07890 416570)



5. REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Any referrals that have been made to this Committee up to and including
the date of publication of this agenda will be reported at the meeting.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES

6. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN 1-38
The Strategic Director of Children’s Services will present a report
(Document “D”) which provides an update on the Children and
Young People’s Plan.

Recommended -

e That the Children’s Overview and Scrutiny committee
acknowledges the amends to the Children and Young
People’s Strategy.

e That the progress report be brought back 12 months after
the date which the Strategy is made final.

(Niall Devlin - (01274) 432009)

7. CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 39 -50
- WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

The report of the Chair of the Children’s Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (Document “E”) includes the Children’s Services
Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme for 2023/24.

Recommended —

e That members consider and comment on the areas of work
included in the work programme.

e That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that
they may wish to conduct.

(Mustansir Butt - (01274) 432574)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6/

City of

BRADFORD

Sk P METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL

J '-h

Report of the Strategic Director Children’s Services to
the meeting of Children’s Overview & Scrutiny
Committee to be held on 18 October 2023

Subject:

Children and Young People’s Strategy

Summary statement:

The Children and Young People’s Strategy previously considered by the Committee on 15
March 2023 and the Committee made the following recommendations:

1.  This Committee requests that the comments and suggestions raised by members be
considered by officers, as part of the development of the Draft Children and Young
People’s Plan.

2. That the Children and Young People’s Plan be presented to this Committee prior to it
being finalised.

3. That a progress report be brought back in 12 months, which also includes all relevant
data to hand, in respect of the various elements listed under the following four key
themes:

Education;

Physical and mental health;

Safe Homes places & Communities;
Skills Development.

Elected members are asked to consider the revised Children and Young People’s
Strategy.

Page 1



EQUALITY & DIVERSITY:

Equality Report Statement
Objectives
Visibility, This strategy has been produced in cooperation with the Wellbeing Board,

leadership and
accountability:

relevant Portfolio Holders, Senior management within the Council and
elected members with the aim of promoting inclusion and equality of access.
The strategy is the overarching strategy for the districts work with children
and young people that provided clear leadership and accountability.

Community: The explicit main aim of the strategy is to ensure that all partners and
service areas have a better understanding of the Bradford Communities.
The emphasis on engagement and co-production is to enable children,
young people and families to participate in decision making.

Services: At the core of the strategy is the ambition that service users will be actively

engaged and be partners in co-production of services.

Marium Haque

Portfolio:

Strategic Director Children’s Service

Children & Families

Report Contact: Niall Devlin Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Phone: (01274) 432009
E-mail: niall.devlin@bradford.gov.uk Children’s Services

Page 2




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

SUMMARY

This Strategy supports our collective district ambition to ensure all babies, children
and young people have equality of access to the resources and support available to
help them, reach their full potential and our vision is for the Bradford District to be a
wonderful place for children to thrive, grow up, live and work.

It identifies the priorities for the Children and Young People and Families Executive
(CYPF) and its partners to support babies, children and young people to be happy
and healthy and have successful lives. The Strategy covers people aged 0-25
years-old and all public sector, voluntary and community organisations that support
and work with: babies, children, young people and their families in our district.

Its overarching aim is to ensure that no matter their background, family, personal or
other circumstances, all babies, children and young people are able to have fair
access to all the opportunities the district offers.

The ambitions and priorities have been developed through listening to the voice of
children and young people; consultation with other stakeholders; data and other
evidence; and harnessing the experience and expertise of key district partners who
will be delivering against its outcomes.

We will also ensure children and young people have opportunities to be involved in
decision-making across the range of our district's strategic public sector
partnerships, through the implementation of a Child Friendly City and building on
what has gone before.

We will support children to be healthy and well, we will reduce inequalities in
physical and mental health, social and emotional development and educational
attainment, actively look to tackle discrimination, the normalisation of bullying and
hate crime as these can have detrimental and adverse impacts on a child's long-
term opportunities and health.

We will listen to how children and young people are doing in terms of their
happiness, their health and wellbeing, their feelings about where they live, whether
they feel they belong, their relationships with family, friends, people of different
backgrounds and statutory services, such as health and the police, their
educational achievement and skills and their hopes for adult life.

We will support children and their families to build resilience, to embed the Bradford
Adversity, Trauma & Resilience Strategy and, more specifically, support babies,
children, young people and their families to recognise and build on these factors.

Factors that promote resilience during childhood (see Figure 1) include: fostering a
protective relationship with an adult caregiver where the adult recognises and
responds to the baby's/child's needs; developing social and emotional skills;
accessing peer support and participating in communities and activities.

Page 3



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

25

2.6

2.7

BACKGROUND

All local authorities are required to have a Children Young People’s Plan under the
Children and Young people’s Plan (England) Regulation 2005. The existing
Children and Young People’s Plan can be found here:

https://www.bradford.gov.uk/media/6615/interimchildrenandyoungpeoplesplan2021-
22.pdf

The Children and Young People’s Strategy is intended to both fulfil the Council’s
legal duty to have a plan and to provide an overall strategy for the district. This is
the reason why the document under consideration is called a Strategy rather than a
Plan.

The Children and Young People’s Strategy previously came to Children’s Overview
and Scrutiny committee on 15 March 2023.

https://bradford.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?1D=20530

This section of report will focus on the actions form the previous Committee
meeting:

1.  This Committee requests that the comments and suggestions raised by
members be considered by officers, as part of the development of the Draft
Children and Young People’s Plan.

2. That the Children and Young People’s Plan be presented to this Committee
prior to it being finalised.

Bringing the Children and Young People’s Strategy back to this Committee is
delivering on the second action above. A copy of the revised Children and Young
People’s Strategy can be seen/reviewed by using the links below and compared
with the version taken to Committee on the 15 March 2023 using the link above.

Current draft summary version of the children and Younqg People’s Strateqy
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-
policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-
strategy-summary/

Current draft for the full Strateqy:
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-
policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-

strategy/

The Committee members suggested that more work needed to be done to clarify
the priorities and how they would be evaluated. The main theme was how would we
know that we were making a difference.

Following the Committee meeting on the 15 March 2023 the senior officer

re-engaged with the statutory and non-statutory partners and amended and
extended the priorities from 12 to 18. The revised Strategy now provides more

Page 4


https://www.bradford.gov.uk/media/6615/interimchildrenandyoungpeoplesplan2021-22.pdf
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/media/6615/interimchildrenandyoungpeoplesplan2021-22.pdf
https://bradford.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=20530
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy-summary/
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy-summary/
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy-summary/
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy/
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy/
http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy/

2.8

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

clarity on how the key priorities would be delivered and the 29 key metrics that will
be monitored to let us know if we were making a difference. The governance
structure for the Children and Young People’s Strategy has now been developed
and sits with the Children and Young People’s Executive Board.

The final action from the Overview and Scrutiny meeting on the 15 March 2023 was
that a progress report would be brought to the Committee in 12 months. There has
only been seven months since the last meeting and it is suggested that that a
review report should be brought 12 months following the Children and Young
People’s Strategy being finalised.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

There are no other direct or indirect matters that were not considered at the
previous Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

There are no additional considerations that were not provided at the previous
Overview and Scrutiny Committee report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

There are no significant risks arising out of the implementation of the proposed
recommendations.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

There are no legal issues arising this should be stated, but only on advice from the
City Solicitor.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
Not applicable.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

The Children and Young people’s Strategy is in line with the Human Rights Act.

Page 5



7.5 TRADE UNION

Trade Unions have been and will be consulted on relevant aspects of the plan, for
example, the changes to the Integrated Front Door.

7.6 WARD IMPLICATIONS

The Children and Young People’s Strategy is intended to apply to all the wards in
the Bradford District.

7.7 IMPLICATIONS FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

The whole Children and Young People’s Strategy is concerned with improving
outcomes for children and young people across the District.

7.8 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
No issues identified.

8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

8.1 None.

9. OPTIONS

9.1 Not applicable.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 The Children’s Overview and Scrutiny committee acknowledges the amends to the
Children and Young People’s Strategy.

10.2 The progress report should be brought back 12 months after the date which the
Strategy is made final.

11. APPENDICES
Appendix 1 — Children and Young People Strategy, long version.
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1  See above links within the report.

Page 6



) abed

Bradford District Children and Young People’s Strategy 2023-2025

Contents

Summary

Foreword

Introduction

About Bradford District

The challenges the District must overcome

What we have been told is important

Our guiding principles

Themes, priorities and impact - Links to other strategies and plans
Appendices

Footnotes

For the happy, healthy development and success of our babies, children and young people. For them to grow-up in safe and supportive: families, homes,
communities, education establishments, leisure and outdoor spaces.

Return to the contents

Summary

e View the Bradford District Children and Young People’s Strategy summary,

Return to the contents

Foreword

Our children and young people, our future


http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy-summary/

g abed

We are proud of being the youngest city in Europe, our children and young people are creating a dynamic place for us all to live, work and play. Our ambition,
spirit and drive is spurred on by the children and young people who tell us what they like, what they dislike and how we can work together to create a future that
leads to a better and fairer Bradford District for us all.

We are immensely privileged to be the UK City of Culture 2025 and we have lots of people to thank for this. However, we know that the judges were
particularly impressed with the children and young people they met, remarking on the passion and vision they shared that encapsulates the spirit that continues
to drive our district forward. We are change makers, we are disruptors, we are bold and we are daring — this is what we want to demonstrate in our strategy and
this is what our children and young people want to see.

We will work together with children and young people from our district, always listening and learning from what they tell us. Our commitment and promise is
that our key partners will be our children and young people, this matters to us. We are working hard on becoming Child Friendly Bradford, this is just the start —
there is so much more to come.

You will see that our strategy has four areas of focus that begins with giving people the best start to life, ensuring people have access and are encouraged to
pursue academic success, creating safer communities, tackling the health challenges that are impacting on lives and equipping our future leaders to take on the
mantle when it is their turn to drive our great city and district forward.

There's so much we can learn from the wealth of experience and data available to us. We are home to the world's largest longitudinal study of its kind, Born in
Bradford. Born in Bradford is an internationally-recognised research programme which aims to find out what keeps families healthy and happy by tracking the
lives of over 40,000 Bradfordians. This rich data, coupled with all the other ways we have been listening to children and young people means we know what
matters to them, we are committed to delivering for you.

Our promise to you is that we will listen to what you tell us, be bold in breaking the cycle of inequality and above all learn from what works as well as what
doesn't. We want this to herald a new approach to people participation that builds on our city and district's proud and rich history.

Our children and young people are our future. Let's work together to realise their ambition.
Councillor Susan Hinchcliffe, Leader of Bradford Council

Professor Mel Pickup, Chief Executive of Bradford Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Charlotte Ramsden, Chief Executive of Bradford Children and Families Trust

Return to the contents

Introduction

This strategy supports our collective district ambition to ensure all babies, children and young people have equity of access to the resources and support
available to help them reach their full potential and our vision is for Bradford District to be a wonderful place for children to thrive, grow up, live and work.



6 abed

It identifies the priorities for the Children and Young People and Families Executive (CYPF) and its partners to support babies, children and young people to be:
happy and healthy, able to develop to their full potential, and have successful lives. The strategy covers people aged 0-25 years-old, and all public sector and
voluntary and community organisations that support and work with: babies, children, and young people, and their families in our district.

Its overarching aim is to ensure, that no matter their background, family, personal or other circumstances, all babies, children and young people are able to
develop to their full potential and have fair access to all the opportunities the district offers.

The ambitions and priorities have been developed through listening to the voice of children and young people; consultation with other stakeholders; data and
other evidence; and harnessing the experience and expertise of key district partners, who will be delivering against its outcomes.

We will also ensure children and young people have opportunities to be involved in decision-making across the range of our district's strategic public sector
partnerships, through the implementation of Child Friendly and building on what has gone before.

We will support children to be healthy and well, we will reduce inequalities in physical and mental health, social and emotional development and educational
attainment and actively look to tackle discrimination, the normalisation of bullying and hate crime as these can have detrimental and adverse impacts on a child's
long term opportunities and health.

We will listen to how children and young people are doing in terms of their happiness, their health and wellbeing, their feelings about where they live, whether
they feel they belong, their relationships with family, friends, people of different backgrounds and statutory services, such as health and the Police, their
educational achievement and skills, and their hopes for adult life.

We will support children and their families to build resilience, to embed the Bradford Adversity, Trauma & Resilience Strategy and, more specifically, support
babies, children, young people and their families to recognise and build on these factors.

Factors that promote resilience during childhood (see Figure 1) include: fostering a protective relationship with an adult caregiver where the adult recognises
and responds to the baby's/child's needs; developing social and emotional skills; accessing peer support; and participating in communities and activities.

Figure 1 Protective factors in childhood



Health Basic cane

el
@b Ensunng safety
Emotional & 0
behavioural . <
development E‘? Q?‘E“ Emotional warmth
Identity @?’I ?.‘-}?
] @Q & Stimulation
Family & social _:F’, FG‘
relabionships & )
o) sal'eguard.mg & "":'g. Gildenca &
Social Rb(’ promoting 7. boundares
presentation ¥ wellare
O
Selfcare skills Stabslety
F:amilg,;r & environmental factors
J'I,_
% “f’-’i a@,%
“b ‘ﬁ;

Bradford District's success in securing the City of Culture 2025 is in large part due to the energy, creativity and commitment of our young people. Going
forward, their continued involvement in the City of Culture and with our Child Friendly initiative will be key to both being successful and sustainable.

0T abed

This Strategy sits within the context of the United Nations international human rights and the United Nation Convention on the Rights of the Child and the rights
of children and young people with disabilities which are encompassed in the United Nations convention on the rights of Persons with Disabilities.

In seeking to meet the needs of and in designing services for children and young people, partners are asked to consider the values, principles and priorities set
out in this document.

Whilst this strategy will have a clear action plan to tackle identified issues, the Children, Young People and Families Executive (CYPF Executive) and partners
will also champion babies, children and young people in other district arenas, such as: Wellbeing Board, the district's Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group,
Sustainable Food Partnership, Start for Life, Living Well, and through links with the West Yorkshire Health and Care Partnership's priorities for children, young
people and families, etc. This will ensure that a wider set of challenges can be addressed and enable children and young people to focus on their happiness and
success.

The action plan to be developed alongside this strategy aims to ensure delivery against it outcomes and priorities.

Return to the contents

About Bradford District



TT abed

Nearly a third of our population is aged under 20, making us one of the youngest district's in the UK. We are also diverse, with those from ethnic minority
backgrounds also forming a third of our 546,400 strong population, and with more than 150 languages being spoken within the district.

Geographically, our district includes the city of Bradford itself, the large town of Keighley and a number of smaller towns and village, many with their own
strong and distinctive identities.

Outstanding landscapes complement historically important architecture alongside a rich heritage and vibrant contemporary cultural scene. Ilkley Moor, Haworth
and Bronté Country, Saltaire World Heritage Site and the National Science and Media Museum in Bradford city centre, amongst a host of other sites, attract 10m
visitors each year.

We are one of the best connected cities in the UK internationally and the scale, diversity and productive potential of our district is reflected in its strong, broad-
based, innovative and entrepreneurial business community, which is part of an overall local economy worth in excess of £9.5bn.

The district has a strong and committed network of voluntary and community organisations with an estimated 30,000 regular volunteers and 100,000 occasional
volunteers. The spirit of our communities is a tangible asset that we want to build on to develop and deliver our shared objectives.

Public services and the voluntary and community sector in the district have a strong track record of working together in mature and effective partnerships and its
work to bring communities together and promote participation is among the most innovative to be found anywhere in the world.

We have excellent assets to help us support our children and young people to be happy, healthy, and to develop to their full potential, such as: the expertise of
Born in Bradford, award winning youth and social cohesion projects; such as The Linking Network, integrated careers and vocational skills programmes, the
University of Bradford's achievement as the number one UK University for social mobility, fantastic programmes such as the Bradford for Everyone Programme
(one of five integration pilot areas in the country), Better Start Bradford, ActEarly, JU:MP, the regions first Adversity, Trauma and Resilience Programme and
the Department of Education's Priority Education Investment Area programme to tackle attainment in the district.

Return to the contents

The challenges the District must overcome

There are also significant challenges to overcome if we are to achieve our ambition for our children and young people, such as:

Inequalities

There are inequalities that exist within all our challenges. Inequalities can start early in life, in terms of the economic and social environment that children are
born into. They can be exacerbated by varying levels of access and attendance in education, health-care, community and service settings, such as:

e Bradford District's rate of infant mortality is the 10th highest in England and the highest in Yorkshire
e Bradford District has the 4th highest rate of child poverty in the UK.
¢ Two in five children here grow up in poverty



21 abed

¢ One in eight children have a diagnosable mental health disorder

e Bradford District is young and growing and it is expected that the onset of mental health difficulties will grow by 10 percent in the next 10 years

¢ One in five child deaths could be avoided if children living in the most deprived areas had the same mortality rate as those living in the least deprived
e Children living in the most deprived areas of the district are four times as likely to die as those in other areas

e A quarter of the district's 10-11 year- olds are obese.

To effectively close the health and attainment gap, a multi-faceted, determined and collective effort is required. Early interventions and prevention of poor health
during childhood will be key, as will more focused support for the children, families, communities and groups who experience the most acute inequality and
marginalisation.

Poverty

Whilst the district includes some of the wealthiest areas in northern England, it is also the fifth most income-deprived in the country. Some 266,000 people live
in the poorest areas and nearly one third of our children currently live in poverty.

Education and skills inequalities

Progress in closing the attainment gaps in primary, secondary and Post 16 education has slowed. The gaps in educational attainment between the district and the
national average are the same or worse than pre-pandemic. However, whilst the adult skills base remains relatively low, it is slowly improving. The most
obvious and quickest way to lift families out of poverty is to ensure that adults are able to work, and that work is well paid, meaningful and with progression
opportunities.

Move to a Children and Families' Trust

The rate of improvement by the Council in its provision of children's social care has led to the creation of Bradford Children and Families' Trust which is due to
be operational from April 2023. Whilst considered positive, resources are being used to: manage the process, manage staff uncertainty, and to ensure partner
organisations and all stakeholders are engaged.

The pandemic and its legacy

We also know that many of our children, young people and their families were negatively impacted through the Covid-19 pandemic — some saw their education
suffer, others felt isolated, many experienced their mental health declining, many saw their families' standard of living reduce, experiencing stress and
depression directly or through those around them. Some will have lost loved ones, or are experiencing long Covid, or are experiencing life with their parents,
guardians or care-givers who are suffering from long Covid.

The pandemic also exposed and widened inequalities that were already there: with those families living on low incomes, those from minority backgrounds and
those people and families living with disabilities, being more severely negatively affected than other groups.



€T abed

Research [1] completed during the Covid-19 pandemic by Born in Bradford highlighted how a national health crisis could exacerbate inequalities. For example,
an estimated one in three of families across Bradford District worried about their job security, one in four worried about paying their rent or mortgage during the
pandemic, with one in 10 experiencing severe financial and food insecurity. Local research [2] during this time also exposed these key inequalities in our
district:

¢ social, emotional and mental health impact
¢ educational disadvantage

e digital exclusion, and

e food poverty.

Cost of living crisis and the economy

The legacy of the pandemic, and other international events, has brought about the worst inflation in the UK for over 40 years along with the highest interest rates
for 14 years. The stress and pressure experienced by our families, who were already experiencing low income, is increasing, and many families who were
previously ‘getting by' are now also facing hardship.

Resources

The district has high levels of need and demand for public services and a limited ability to raise income locally. This can lead to more resources being needed to
manage crises rather than to develop and improve provision and support.

Our children and young people are our greatest asset, and if they are to have the opportunity to realise their full potential, we must all work together to ensure
better life chances are secured for them.

Return to the contents

What we have been told is important

By our children and young people
Education

What matters to our children and young people?

e Recognition of the pressures on young people, sometimes compounded by school, and its impact on wellbeing and mental health. Children want to enjoy
lessons and learning.

e An emphasis on support to improve attendance and behaviour, including alternatives to punitive school behaviour policies such as isolation.

e Arich curriculum offer that recognises subjects such as art.



¥T abed

Racism: children and young people told us that racism is a concern.

Celebrating Bradford District's culture, history and future through City of Culture 2025.

Offer from schools of more vocational education and better preparation for life and work. This includes teaching young people how to get the jobs that
they want, more vocational education and better preparation for life and work.

Having access to high quality, tailored and planned life skills development as well as careers advice and guidance. Aspirations are low because jobs are
low paid.

Employer recruitment practices should focus on competencies and skills not time or experience.

Families lack resources to support young people and access to basic services such as transport and digital are limited by affordability.

Physical and Mental Health

What matters to our children and young people?

Greater recognition of mental health issues and issues around identity, sexuality and race. Safe spaces in schools and the community for young people.
More, better and earlier availability of support services for wellbeing and mental health. This includes ensuring schools train staff and students as
ambassadors for mental health, and mental health first aiders.

Young people know what good emotional support from their friends, families, communities and services should look like and want to be involved in
designing services. Waiting times for mental health services are unacceptable. More community support, e.g. youth cafes, and opportunities for the arts.
Some children and young people experience their environment and lives very differently to others: girls, and LGBTQ+ children and young people report
lower levels of happiness, healthiness and safety than their peers. Young people aged 16+ years report lower levels of satisfaction with their physical and
mental health than their younger peers. Children and young people in inner city areas report more dissatisfaction with the levels of crime, cleanliness and
litter in their environment; those in towns or rural areas report fewer activities and opportunities.

Safe Homes, Places and Communities

What matters to our children and young people?

To live in clean and safe spaces, free from fear of crime and intimidation, and with more community action and cohesion.

More affordable or free services in their local community; particularly youth services that develop their social networks and connections.

Children want to be involved in their communities but don't always know how to do this.

Community hubs to support children and their families where they live, including access to learning resources, internet access and digital skills.
Children's families and friends are very important to them. They want to live and thrive in safe and warm homes. When they leave their homes they want
the whole community to take care of their environment. They want street lighting and to be able to safely move around either on their own or with friends.
Young people report that they want clean streets, no litter and clean air. They want traffic to be reduced and drivers to take care and not speed.

Parks and green spaces and playgrounds are very important to children and young people and meet a variety of needs. Teenagers want places to hang out
with friends that are safe and accessible.

Children and young people want to be able to shop and access services locally. They want affordable options in terms of what to do, what to eat and where
to hang out.



GT abed

Participation and Voice

What matters to our children and young people?

Young people want more involvement in decision making and the opportunity to have a voice and influence by working directly with councillors and
decision makers

They want to see evidence that their voice has an impact and leads to change

Young people with SEND tell us that they want to be more involved in decisions that affect them and be able to access information in the way they find
easiest - this might be in person as well as online.

Children and young people want adults and organisations to ensure their voices are heard before policies are formed and to “always tell us what you are
doing for us and why. And to do this forever”.

Through Bradford's Citizen Panel of young people and the Pandemic Recovery Summary we have also heard that:

Wellbeing and mental health needs to be supported
Racism impacts young people
The cost of living crisis is impacting young people and their families

From younger children through their parents, service providers and other advocates:

Access to good quality childcare and funded places for two year-olds for those that are eligible.
Access to family hubs, health visitors, play and learn sessions, support for healthy weight and nutrition, speech and language development.

What our children and young people would like to change about schools:

Pressure and stress from school impacts on health, mental health and wellbeing.

They sometimes receive a hard time for attendance

They struggle to enjoy lessons.

Schools start too early and young people find it hard to concentrate.

Issues around sexuality, identity and race not taken seriously enough.

Struggle to assert individuality through hair, dress, uniform, etc.

Cost of living crisis is affecting them

The CYP Mental Health coalition raised concerns re. punitive approaches and subsequent impact on mental health and wellbeing

By our services, partners and professionals

What matters to our children, young people and families from the view of our services, partners and professionals

There are increasing pressures on parents/carers. The cost of living crisis, on top of other crises, i.e. Covid-19 and the impact of mental health.
Inequalities are getting worse.



9T abed

e Children and young people are becoming isolated due to costs of IT and transport.
e Diagnoses, e.g. of autism, doesn't always provide the support that is expected.
e The ‘snowball effect' impact that the withdrawal of services can have on communities.

What our services, partners and professionals would like to change:

e There is a lack of support and capacity for mental health needs in the system. Waiting lists are too long.
¢ Better communication and joining up of services between all partners, this includes:
Ensuring that families are directed to the right services at the earliest opportunity
Ensuring children with SEND and their families access the Local Offer
English language skills development is needed by people born in the UK as well as those accessing ESOL
Expectations around information sharing for vulnerabilities and incidents should be standard for all partners, including the VCS
Reducing the burden on schools through better signposting to statutory services and VCS.
e Longer term plans and more sustainability to ensure:
o Resources are maximised and shared more effectively
o Services don't end suddenly and then restart, and
o Risk of losing ‘organisational memory' is reduced.
¢ Partnership working with schools - VCS organisations report that they cannot always have the right conversation at the right time with the right person
e Schools' inconsistent approaches to the VCS can mean delays or inconsistencies in the support provided to children and families
e A more joined up approach to supporting improving attendance for children and young people, including understanding the root causes of poor attendance
and persistent absence
e Improving parental engagement in schools and their children's education and development
e Ensuing that the opportunities and risks of digital provision are understood. For example, mental and physical health promotion, protection from harm
including gaming and gambling.

o

o
[e]
[e]
[e]

What the data and other evidence tells us

Other relevant quantitative and qualitative analysis is provided in Appendix 2: Data and Evidence Summary.

Return to the contents

Our guiding principles



OUR THEMES

)T abed

SAFE HOMES, PLACES &
COMMUNITIES

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

OUR VALUES

* PARTNERSHIP WORKING
* RESEARCH & EVIDENCE-INFORMED PRACTICE
* EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION

* VOICE AND INFLUENCE OF CHILDREN & FAMILIES



8T abed

OUR AMBITION:
Happy, healthy children

‘ The Future_::_‘::ﬁ

OUR OBJECTIVE:

Tackling inequalities

The strategy and action plan have been developed with regard to the following principles and Bradford District's Shared Values, which are:

e We RESPECT ourselves, each other and our communities

e We CARE for each other and treat each other with kindness

e We SHARE ideas, resources, knowledge and skills as well as our challenges

e We PROTECT each other and the world we share so that we can be happy healthy and safe

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
The Children's, Young People and Families Executive (CYPF Executive), along with its district partners, is committed to ensuring that all our children and
young people have equity of access to the support available to meet their needs, that they are treated fairly, that services and provision meet their diverse needs,

and that they have opportunities to meet with children and young people from different backgrounds and have opportunities to benefit from services and
activities either offered to all, or those available to meet their specific needs.

Safeguarding and Early Intervention

Safeguarding is everybody's responsibility.



6T abed

We want to ensure that our most vulnerable and marginalised children and young people are protected from harm, and that they and their families are provided
with the services and support to enable them to secure their rights to maximise their potential. We recognise that many children's and families' needs are
complex, that a lack of financial and other resources, and or language or cultural obstacles, can make it difficult for families to access support or care.

Intervening early, through recognised and effective Prevention and Early Help mechanisms is key to ensuring babies, children, young people and families are
supported. Prevention and Early Help is a high priority both nationally and at a local level, and in Bradford District we are fully committed to going further in
our Family Hubs Start for Life programme within Bradford District's Prevention and Early Help Strategy.

This is a collaborative approach, focusing on the first 1001 days and prevention and promotion of health, to avoid problems either before they happen or from
getting worse. We will identify needs early but we also recognise that it's never too late for early help to make a difference.

We will promote healthy, open and honest relationships; within families, between families and the workers providing support, and across our partnerships. How
people get along with and support each other is key, particularly to support each other through times of change and or difficulty. We recognise that fostering and
building positive social connections are essential to everyone's wellbeing.

The babies, children and young people who are most in need in the district deserve better. Children must have outstanding social work support. We will work in
partnership with families and agencies to safely reduce the number of children who are in care/subject to Child Protection Plans and the children in need, open
to statutory services.

Child Friendly Bradford District: Giving children, young people and families a voice and influence

We have an ambition to put the voice and influence of children, young people and families at the heart of everything we do. In November 2022, we launched our
Child Friendly Bradford District initiative. This approach, rooted in Article 12 of the United Nations Convention of the Rights of the Child, states that children
and young people should have a voice and influence when adults make decisions that affect their lives.

The district's Child Friendly initiative will seek to create an organisational culture where children and young people are informed of their rights and where
services enable them to have a meaningful voice and influence, working restoratively with them as equal stakeholders and empowering them to have a sense of
ownership over our district and the services they access.

In Spring 2022 as part of a Foundational Year working with UNICEF UK, we undertook a localities survey to inform the contents of this strategy. Working with
partners in the Youth Service and Localities Teams, over 4,000 children and young people were asked face-to-face what their priorities were for the district. We
have used these views to shape this strategy and will continue to work with them to enable them to have a voice and influence over the actions we will take to
address these priorities.

A summary of what we have heard during our consultations can be found in the section above ‘What we have been told is important' and in Appendix 2 -
Evidence and Consultation Summary.

Child Friendly Bradford District



0z abed

Our vision to create a more Child Friendly district is based on the underpinning principles of the United Nations Convention of the Rights of the Child. We have
an ambition for all our children and young people to be aware of their rights and for the organisations across our district-wide partnership to help ensure these
rights are met.

We want all our children and young people to have the opportunity to be active citizens who have a voice and influence. We want them to understand our
systems of democracy and governance and to be empowered to work in partnership with us to help create better outcomes for them and their peers.

In a Child Friendly District, we will create a culture where we celebrate their achievements and will engage with a wide range of organisations to unlock new
partnerships and create more opportunities to make our district a better place for children and young people to live and grow up in.

Voice and participation of children and families

We have engaged with children, young people, their advocates and practitioners to ensure the voice of the child is reflected in this strategy. Some of what we
have heard can be found in the section above ‘What we have been told is important' and in Appendix 1ethodology and Consultation Summary. We have also
talked to some families and family practitioners.

We also engaged with over 700 families to help shape the new ‘Good Food strategy' and ‘Physical Activity strategy'. These two strategies play a key role in
contributing towards the ‘physical and mental health' ambition of the Children and Young People's Strategy.

The Children, Young People and Families Executive (CYPF Executive) and its partners welcome the district's Child Friendly Initiative. We will support and
work closely with it as a way in which the voice and participation of children and young people can continue, that they can influence how this strategy is
implemented, and that children and young people are able to effect change locally.

Research and evidence informed practice

This strategy has been informed by a wealth of research findings and other quantitative and qualitative evidence: Appendix 2 provides a summary of this
research and evidence along with a list of its sources.

The Children, Young People's and Families Executive (CYPF Executive) and its partners will continue to seek and make available evidence to inform practice
and will continue to engage with and draw on evidence from ActEarly, Born in Bradford, Better Start Bradford, Public Health, Centre for Applied Education
Research, the Alliance for Life Chances, etc. It will also participate with the district's new Council-led Health Determinants Research Collaboration (HDRC).

The collaboration, spanning research, university and public sector organisations, will research the causes and impact of health inequality with the aim of
informing local, regional and national policy to tackle the impacts of this inequality.

The CYPF Executive will support HDRC and will ensure it considers its findings in its strategies, plans and actions.

Partnership working



TZ abed

Partnership has been crucial to development of this strategy. It has been developed in partnership with children, young people and families. It has also been
developed collectively by a range of strategic partners covering the local authority, police, health, education (early years, primary, secondary, tertiary, higher
education), voluntary sector, and private sector.

Partnership working will be critical to the success of this strategy. All partners will have crucial roles in developing, supporting, embedding, evaluating and
challenging this strategy. Specific actions will be outlined in the action plan developed to implement this strategy. We need to build on the strengths and assets
that individual partners bring and support them and challenge them appropriately.

However, to really make a difference for children and young people, agencies, organisations, teams, departments, and services must act collectively and be
“acting as one”. The collective ownership of this strategy needs to be maintained and enhanced. There is more to do to develop, deepen, and strengthen
partnership working. Inspections have recognised that there is still much to do in improving and developing how partners work together. There is also much to
do in ensuring partnerships are equitable and effective, and genuinely deliver in the best interests of children, young people, and families. This includes
ensuring:

e Partnership with children, young people and families is meaningful, comprehensive, inclusive and effective
All the District's strategic partnerships are aligned to, and engaged with delivering this strategy

Further strategies and planning take account of this strategy

Areas of partnership practice are identified and built upon

Barriers to effective partnership working and areas for improvement are addressed and identified.

Specific actions in the action plan aim to address improving and developing partnership working.

Return to the contents

Themes, priorities and impact - Links to other strategies and plans



2c abed

Saf
Communities * @
Plan Related ACEs,

Trauma &

Strategies Resilience

Physical I;i::ﬁg & Plal‘ls

Activity
Strategy

Strategy

Council

outa Service
Anti-Poverty Ry Plans
L . » .‘-

Strategy A
Bradford

District J:° Economic
Growth




Bradford
Breastfeeding Prevention &

Early Hel
Strategy s":tegyp

Safeguarding

Workforce Partnership

Development Business Plan
for Children
Plan

gz abed

Bradford
District and
Craven
Children and
Families Health
and Care Plan

Inclusion

West Yorkshire
ICB CYPF

Programme
Board Strategy




Themes and Sustainable Development Goals

The table below maps the Children and Young People's Strategy's themes to the United Nations Sustainable Developmental Goals.

yZ abed



UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT GOALS BY THEME

Children & Young Sustainable
People's Plan Theme Development Goals

E‘E‘i

Physical & oWt g
Mental Health 44/\0

Ensure inclusive and
equitable quality
education and promote
lifelong learning
opportunities for all.

Gg abed

Ensure healthy lives and
promote well-being for all,
at all ages.

GONDER
EQuALITY Achieve gender equality &

empower all women and
girls.




SUSTANAELE CITIES
AND COMMILMITES

n

PEACE. JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

Safe Homes
Places &
Communities :

QUALITY
EDUCATION

L]

DECENT WORX AND

Skills e
Development | Af

1 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

.
4am )
v
Education

Make cities & human
settlements inclusive, safe,
resillient & sustainable.

Promote peaceful and
inclusive societies for
sustainable development,
provide justice for all and
build effective,
accountable and inclusive
institutions at all levels

Ensure inclusive and
equitable quality
education and promote
lifelong learning
opportunities for all.

Decent work & economic
growth

Reduce inequality within
and among countries




)2 abed

Our ambition

We want all our children and young people to enjoy learning throughout the whole of their childhood, whether this is: in their home, pre-school or other
educational establishment settings, digital settings, libraries, youth and community settings, parks and play areas, or other outdoor settings.

Each child should have the opportunity to reach their full educational potential regardless of their background or circumstances.

This strategy aims to ensure the learning and education of those children and young people who have special or additional needs, who are more vulnerable, or
who are on the fringes of vulnerability, is supported and not compromised as a result of their vulnerability. This includes access to skills for life learning such as:
sex and relationships, healthy lifestyles, citizenship and democracy, climate action and sustainability, and diversity and community cohesion.

We will ensure children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) receive the support they require in school and at home, and to
access other activities.

Priorities

1. Improved partnership working between preschool childcare, schools, statutory services and the voluntary and community sector so that the
needs of the child and family are prioritised and met.

2. All children have the opportunity to enjoy learning and school, have good attendance, and that those who need additional support can, and do
access it.

3. All Children are ready for the next stage by improving educational outcomes and access to ‘skills for life' education. Pupils who have SEND, are
disadvantaged, are care experienced or who have other vulnerabilities, have support for their transition to adulthood.

Physical and mental health
Our ambition

We want all our children and young people to enjoy the best physical, emotional and mental health possible throughout their lives — we strive for equity of
opportunity and access as well as equity of outcomes.

We will tailor actions to ensure they are suitable and equitable across the range of circumstances, needs and settings that children and young people experience
and occupy.

In line with the vision of the Bradford District and Craven Health and Care Partnership we aim to ‘Act as One' to keep children and young people, Happy,
Healthy and Home. We support the ‘Act as One' purpose of enabling our communities to thrive. Children and young people are an integral priority within the
partnership.

We will deliver this through collaboration across the Act As One Programmes, for example Mental Health is supported within the Children and Families Board
through its four pillars (Best 1001 days, Universal prevention and early identification including Healthy Minds in schools, Pathways and Services using the



gz abed

Thrive Framework, and Complex Care) as well as through the Healthy Minds Board.

Through working with the Healthy Minds Board, we have identified the following key objectives:

promote better lives, positive mental wellbeing, and great opportunities to thrive
respect and keep children safe
improve mental health with a recovery focus

We will consolidate our collective ambitions across district wide and partnership strategies [3].

Priorities

[98)

9]

. Ensure babies (and new mothers), children and young people have early access to, and a good experience of, universal services, wellbeing and

mental health support.

. Improve families' access to affordable and healthy food
. Ensure all children and young people can access active spaces and enhance opportunities to engage with sports and other physical activities to

have fun and reduce sedentary behaviour.

. Focus on prevention and promotion: work with communities, children and young people to co-create what works to protect their wellbeing.
. Support easy access to services and pathways by Implementing the Thrive framework and establish one front door so everyone knows where to

access help when needed.

. Promote Living Well and Healthy Minds in Schools: develop whole school approaches with our Healthy Minds charter, champions, and support

teams.

. Focus on children who need more support and have trauma informed approaches
. Review pathways to improve access to services whilst ensuring children and young people are directed to the correct service and receive the

necessary support whilst on that pathway

We will measure success through:

The involvement of children and young people in the coproduction of solutions

Collaboration and implementation of the Child Friendly District ambition which will support both physical and mental health.
Equity of access to universal services

Increased access to education, School readiness, training, housing, youth clubs

Access to early intervention offers with evidence of impact and difference made

Increased support for children in need, looked after, those that enter care or protection plan

We will share best practice and work in partnership on shared care planning and EHCPs.

We will commit to working with partners to develop a detailed plan of action, based on evidence.

Safe Homes, Places and Communities



62 abed

Our ambition

We want all our children and young people to be safe and feel safe in all places and settings both within and outside of the district — including digital spaces. We
want them to have the opportunity to have fun and enjoy themselves wherever they are.

We want them to be proud of their identity and to feel free and safe to express who they are, wherever they are.

We want our young people to have the opportunity to develop healthy intergenerational relationships within their own families, communities and those who
provide services or work with them.

We also want them to have safe places they can go to remove themselves from harm, and to have people they can turn to for support at times appropriate to
them.

We know that children and young people consider clean streets and lighting are important in making them feel safe, we will ensure that they able to influence
local decisions.

Priorities

1. Babies', children's and young people's homes, and their wider physical, social and digital environments are safe, clean and sustainable. Children
are protected from all types of harm

2. Children and young people have opportunities to have fun and enjoy their local leisure, social, and cultural opportunities

3. Children and young people have safe, clean, well-lit and accessible places and spaces where they can play, socialise and be physically active

4. Children and young people are confident to be themselves in different spaces and be supported to be safe and have a sense of belonging wherever
they may be.

Skills Development
Our ambition

We want all our young people to have opportunities to develop and gain the skills needed to attain decently paid and sustainable work and to live healthy, fun,
safe, and fulfilling lives.

Regardless of their background or circumstances, we want them to be aware of what opportunities are available to them — both locally and further afield, the
skills and education they need to enable them to take up those opportunities and how to access skills and educational support so that they have the opportunity to
apply for work and careers that will meet their needs and aspirations.

We want to work with others, such as West Yorkshire Combined Authority, Department of Work and Pensions, The West and North Yorkshire Chamber of
Commerce etc. to ensure the basics required to support our young people to make their aspirations a reality are in place, such as flexible recruitment practices,
affordable transport, and opportunities to participate in relevant work experience.



0€ abed

Priorities

1. Young people leave school with the right qualifications and skills, including life, social and independence skills, to pursue their chosen education,

employment or training pathway and to live healthy, happy, fun, safe and fulfilling lives

2. All children, young people and families have access to digital resources, provision and skills. Children, young people and families can get the

support they need from accessible and co-produced services.

3. Lift families out of poverty and into better paid work through targeted skills improvement and employment support.

Impact Statements (How we will know that we have made a difference)

Every child to start out with the foundations for good health and wellbeing throughout their lives. We will have a 0-5 prevention and early help offer for
families from birth to starting school. This will offer integrated and high quality early years care for all. It should help families provide warm, supportive
and nurturing environments and ensure access to early play and learning opportunities for all children, especially those most in need. Success here will
lead to a higher percentage of children starting school with a good level of development and succeeding in school.

More of our children educated in good or outstanding schools, with high attendance rates, increased educational attainment and, most importantly, a
reduction in the educational attainment gap between the most and least advantaged.

Our young people making successful transitions into adult life; to reach adulthood with a sense of belonging, purpose, wellbeing and the skills and
resilience they need to succeed. This means higher numbers of young people in school getting access to vocational courses in schools, more
apprenticeships, higher attainment at Level 3 and a reduction in the numbers of young people not in education, training or employment.

Our young people enjoying healthy childhoods which lay the foundations for long and healthy adult lives. This means living in communities which
promote healthy living and have services to support those in need. This will be reflected in lower obesity rates, increased physical activity, better support
services for young people with mental health problems and fewer families living in poor housing.

Our communities to be safe, inclusive and sustainable. This will be reflected in lower crime rates, increased sense of community safety, better housing
conditions, development of green spaces, parks and play facilities, the development of a full cultural engagement strategy and movement toward
integrated local service provision.

Our young people to have a voice through newly created and improved participation and engagement structures. These may include new political
engagement forums for children and young people, such as: citizens' juries, local community impact assessments, a youth council and youth overview and
scrutiny committee.

Children and young people across the district will have access to positive, enjoyable and regular out-of-school hours' activities and opportunities.

Return to the contents

Appendices

View the Bradford District Children and Young People's Strategy appendices

Return to the contents



http://bradfordgov.bradford.gov.uk/children-young-people-and-families/reports-policies-projects-and-strategies/bradford-district-children-and-young-peoples-strategy-appendices/

Footnotes

[1] www.bradfordresearch.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/BiB-Covid-19-First-1000-Briefing-V2.0.pdf

[2] www.bradfordresearch.nhs.uk/family-and-community-impacts-of-covid-19/

[3] For example, the Healthy Minds, Living Well strategies as well as our Joint Forward Plan

TE abed


https://www.bradfordresearch.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/BiB-Covid-19-First-1000-Briefing-V2.0.pdf
https://www.bradfordresearch.nhs.uk/family-and-community-impacts-of-covid-19/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7/

City of

¥ BRADFORD

°,,‘-‘ METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of the Chair of the Children’s Services Overview
and Scrutiny Committee to be held on Wednesday 18
October 2023

Subject:

Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee — Work Programme 2023/24

Summary statement:

This report includes the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
work programme for 2023/24.

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY

Community Cohesion and Equalities related issues are part of the work remit for
this Committee.

Clir Debbie Davies Portfolio:

Chair — Children’s Services Overview and

Scrutiny Committee Children and Families
Report Contact: Mustansir Butt Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Overview and Scrutiny Lead

Phone: (01274) 432574 Children’s Services

E-mail: mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk

Page 33



1.1

1.2

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

SUMMARY

This report includes the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
work programme for 2023/24, which is attached as appendix 1 to this report.

Also attached as appendix 2 to this report is a list of unscheduled topics for
2023/24.

BACKGROUND

The Council constitution requires all Overview and Scrutiny Committees to produce
a work programme.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

The Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the responsibility for
“the strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the
corporate priority about services to children and young people.” (Council
Constitution, Part 2, 6.3.1).

Best practice published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny suggests that “work
programming should be a continuous process”. It is important to review work
programmes, so that important or urgent issues that arise during the year are able
to be scrutinised. Furthermore, at a time of limited resources, it should also be
possible to remove areas of work which have become less relevant or timely. For
this reason, it is proposed that the Committee’s work programme be regularly
reviewed by members of the committee throughout the municipal year.

The work programme as agreed by the Committee will form the basis for the
Committee’s work during the year, but will be amended as issues arise during the
year.

This Committee is currently finalising the Elective Home Education Scrutiny
Review, which was undertaken in the last municipal year.

At its meeting on Tuesday 15 March 2022, the Executive, during their discussions
relating to supporting children and their families to thrive post pandemic,
recommended that the Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee
undertake a scrutiny review into Child Poverty across the District.

The Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting on
Wednesday 1 February 2023, agreed to undertake a Scrutiny Review into
persistent absence across schools in the Bradford District.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

None.

Page 34



5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

1.7

7.8

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

None.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

None.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS

None.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

None.

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

None.

TRADE UNION

None.

WARD IMPLICATIONS

Work of this Overview and Scrutiny Committee has ward implications, but this

depends on that nature of the topic.

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
This will be a key area of work for the Committee.

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT

None.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

None.

Page 35



9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

12.

OPTIONS

The Committee may choose to add to or amend the topics included in the 2023-24
work programme for the committee.

Members may wish to consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that it may wish to
conduct.
RECOMMENDATIONS

That members consider and comment on the areas of work included in the work
programme.

That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that they may wish to
conduct.

APPENDICES

Appendix One — 2023-24 Work Programme for the Children’s Services Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

Appendix Two — Unscheduled Topics.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Council Constitution.
2022-23 Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme.

Page 36



Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny

Agenda Items

Wednesday, 12th July 2023 at City Hall, Bradford.
Chair's briefing 22/06/23. Report deadline 29/06/23.
1) Appointment of Co-opted members.

2) Draft Childrens 2023-24 Children's Services
Overview & Scrutiny Work Programme.

Chair's briefing 06/09/23. Report deadline 14/09/23.
1) Monitoring the Children's Services
Improvement Plan.

)€ abed

2) Work Programme.

Childrens Services O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme

Description Report Author

Voting Co-opted Members - Joyce Mustansir Butt.
Simpson, (Church Representative),

Parenet Governor Represntative Fauzai

Raza & Shifa Simab. Non

Voting C-opted Members - Teacher

Secondary School Representative Tom

Bright, Children's Social Care -

Dr Samina Karim.

The proposed areas of work to be
considered in this muncipal year.

Mustansir Butt.

Wednesday, 27th September 2023 at City Hall, Bradford.

Marium Haque/Picklu
Roychoudhary/Charlotte
Ramsden.

Mustansir Bultt.

Report to also include performance data.

There is s a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prirotise and
manage the work.

Wednesday, 4th October 2023 at Remote Virtual Meeting.

1) Child Poverty Scrutiny Review.

Remote informal information gathering Mustansir Butt.
session with the volumtary sector and

and Bradford Council Officers.

Wednesday, 18th October 2023 at City Hall, Bradford.

Chair's briefing 27/09/23. Report deadline 05/10/23.
1) Bradford District Children and Young People
Plan.

6th October 2023

Niall Devlin/Jenny
Cryer/Kate Welsh/Helen
Johnston.

The Plan be presented to the Committee
prior to it being finalised. To also include
details of priorities and outcomes.

Comments

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 1 March 2023.

Council resolution.

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednedsay 15 March 2023.

Page 1 of 5



Agenda Items

Childrens Services O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme

Description

Wednesday, 18th October 2023 at City Hall, Bradford.

Chair's briefing 27/09/23. Report deadline 05/10/23.
2) Work Programme.

Monday, 20th November 2023 at Unknown.
1) Child Poverty Scrutiny Review.

There is s a need to regularly review the

work programme, in order to prirotise and

manage the work.

Informal information gathering session
with young people.

Wednesday, 29th November 2023 at City Hall, Bradford.

Chair's briefing 08/11/23. Report deadline 16/11/23.
1) National Review Action Plan.

g€ abed

2) Health Services to looked after Children and
care leavers.

3) Sufficency Strategy, to also include in-house
Fostering Service and Adoptions.

4) Supporting Families Programme.

5) Young Carers.

6th October 2023

Progress against the review
recommendations, together with
examples of some positive
outcomes.

The Annual Report to also include:
Details of the progress against the Action
Plan;
the Children's Health Assessments being
undertaken;
Health Assessments being done within
St

Progress against the strategy and the
recommendations contained within it.

To also include measures of
performance and details of outcomes
and improvements delivered.

Report Author

Mustansir Butt.

Mustansir Butt.

Darren

Minton/Marium
Haque/Michelle
Turner/Ruth Terry/Richard

Padwell.

Michelle Turner/Cath
Murray/James Drury.

Outcomes of

Percentage of Children's

Marium Haque/Charlottle
Ramsden/Picklu
Roychoudhary.

Charlotte Ramsden/Cath
Dew/Andrew Edwards.
Charlotte Ramsden/Cath
Dew.

Comments

ChildIren's Services Overview & Scrutiny

Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 30 June 2022. Been
deferred on two occassions at the
request of Officers.

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny

Committee recommendtaion from
Wednesday 14 December 2023.

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 15 March 2023.

Member Request.
Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny

Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 23 March 2022.

Page 2 of 5



Childrens Services O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda Items Description
Wednesday, 29th November 2023 at City Hall, Bradford.
Chair's briefing 08/11/23. Report deadline 16/11/23.
6) Work Programme. There is s a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prirotise and
manage the work.

Wednesday, 20th December 2023 at City Hall, Bradford.
Chair's briefing 30/11/23. Report deadline 07/12/23.
1) Raising Attainment Strategy. Demonstate key outcomes.

2) School Holiday and Activity Programme.

3) Home School Transport.

6 abed

4) Work Porgramme, There is s a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prirotise and
manage the work.

Wednesday, 24th January 2024 at City Hall, Bradford.
Chair's briefing 04/01/24. Report deadline 11/01/24.

1) SEND Services. This Committee requests that a further
progress report be presented in 12
months, which also includes the deatiled
Action Plan, RAG rating and the full
Written Statement of Action.

2) Findings from the review into children’s health
assessment caseloads.

3) Work Programme. There is s a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prirotise and
manage the work.

6th October 2023

Report Author

Mustansir Butt.

Marium Haque/Sue
Lowndes.

Mustansir Butt

Marium Haque/Niall Devlin.

Michelle Holgate/Dawn
Lee.

Mustansir Bultt.

Comments

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 1 February 2023.
Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 27 September 2023.
Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 27 September 2023.

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendations from
Wednesday 18 January 2023.

Deferred from Children's Services
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting on Wednesday 15 February
2023.

Page 3 of 5



Agenda Items

Childrens Services O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme

Description Report Author

Wednesday, 7th February 2024 at City Hall, Bradford.

Chair's briefing 17/01/24. Report deadline 25/01/24.
1) Exploitation Annual Report.

2) Monitoring the Children's Services
Improvement Plan.

3) Audit findings relating to the quality of Social
Work Practice.

4) Bradford District Children and Young People
Plan.

Ot abed

5) Work Programme.

Darren Minton/Marium
Haque/Charlotte
Ramsden.

Marium Haque/Charlotte
Ramsden.

Charlotte
Ramsden/Amandip Johal.

To include detailed information of
porgress being made.

Progress to include relevant data in
respect of the various elements listed
under the following four key themes:

Marium Haque/Charlottle
Ramsden/Niall
Devlin/Jenny Cryer/Jenny

Education; Physical
and Mental Health; Safe Homes
Places & Communities; Skills

Development.

There is s a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prirotise and
manage the work.

Mustansir Butt.

Wednesday, 13th March 2024 at City Hall, Bradford.

Chair's briefing 21/02/24. Report deadline 29/02/24.
1) Mental Health issues relating to Children's
Social Care.

2) Educational Standards - Early Years to Key
Stage 4.

6th October 2023

Ali Jan Haider/David
Sims/Christina
Hollaway/Kristain Farnell.

Report to focus on the Written Statement
of Action and the Action Plan to support

the delivery of this and outcomes

delivered. Findings and

recommendations from the Deep Dive

Review, to also be included.

To scope the report with the Chair,
Deputy Chair and Overview & Scrutiny
Lead.

Marium Haque/Sue
Lowndes.

Comments

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Commmittee recommendation from
Wednesday 15 February 2023.

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 18 January 2023.
Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 15 March 2023.

Cryer/Helen Johnston.

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee from Wednesday 15
February 2023.

Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Wednesday 15 February 2024.

Page 4 of 5



Childrens Services O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda Items Description Report Author Comments

Wednesday, 13th March 2024 at City Hall, Bradford.
Chair's briefing 21/02/24. Report deadline 29/02/24.
3) Work Programme, There is s a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prirotise and
manage the work.

T ebed

6th October 2023 Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny

Scrutiny Committees Forward Plan
Unscheduled Items
Childrens Services O&S Committee

Agenda item Item description Author Comments
1 Child Poverty Scrutiny Review. Mustansir Butt. Council resolution from Tuesday 15 March
2022.

2 Scrutiny Review into persistent Mustansir Butt. Children's Services Overview & Scrutiny
absence across schools in the Committee recommendation from
Bradford District. Wednesday 1 February 2023.

3 Draft Scrutiny Review Report - Key findings and recommendations ftom the scrutiny review. Mustansir Butt.

Elective Home Education.

e abed

Page 1 of 1



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN
	Doc D 1 - CYP  strategy long version (1)

	7 CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24
	Doc E - Appendix 1 - Work Programme
	Doc E - Appendix 2 - Unscheduled Topics


